



Veeva Network 23R1.1.1 Data Governance

June 2023

Contents

Data governance	7
Adding new fields to your Veeva OpenData subscription	7
Enabling Veeva OpenData fields for extended use	7
Data Governance document updates	7
Field definition updates	8
Field updates for all countries	11
Field updates for Asia Pacific	12
Field updates for EMEA	13
Field updates for China	15
Field updates for Latin America	15
Global data updates	16
Algeria	16
Australia	16
Austria	16
China	17
Estonia	17
France	18
Hong Kong	19
Indonesia	20
Latvia	21
Liechtenstein	21
Lithuania	21
Масао	22
Malaysia	23

Monaco24
New Zealand25
Philippines25
Switzerland25
Taiwan26
Thailand28
Vietnam28
Global data inactivations
Albania29
Bahrain29
Bosnia and Herzegovina
Bulgaria
Croatia
Denmark
Egypt
Estonia
Ghana
Iceland36
India
Indonesia
Israel44
Jordan44
Kenya44
Kuwait45
Latvia45



Lebanon45
Liechtenstein
Lithuania46
Malta46
Mauritius47
Montenegro47
Morocco
North Macedonia48
Oman48
Qatar48
Romania49
Saudi Arabia49
Senegal49
Serbia
Slovenia50
South Africa
Switzerland51
Tunisia51
Turkey51
United Arab Emirates52
Vietnam
Translation updates
Chinese - Traditional
English - American59
Korean60



Romanian60

Data governance

The data governance document describes data changes introduced in this release as of the publication date of this document.

Adding new fields to your Veeva OpenData subscription

When Veeva OpenData adds new fields to a country that you are subscribed to, you can add the field to the subscription so that it's ready to receive data and be managed by Veeva OpenData.

For information about adding new Veeva OpenData fields to your subscription, see the topic called Adding Veeva OpenData fields in the Veeva Network Online Help.

Enabling Veeva OpenData fields for extended use

Veeva OpenData fields can be enabled to load local data or third party data. A field can be managed by Veeva in some countries, managed by a third party source in other countries, or be owned by a customer in the remaining countries.

Administrators can view ownership of the data model fields, by country, in the Network user interface by navigating to **Data Model** and choosing the **Customer Master** data domain. Click **Export Data Model** or select an object to view specific field details.

For more information about enabling Veeva OpenData fields for local or third party data use, see the topic called Enabling data model fields in the *Veeva Network Online Help*.

Data Governance document updates

The following change has been made to the Data Governance document since it was published for the Early release.

• Key Network Field - The key_hco_network_alias__v field will not be added to the HCO object for all countries (except ZZ countries) in Network version 23R1.1. It will be added in a later release.

All material in the Data Governance document should be reviewed to ensure that updates are noted.

Field definition updates

ID fields

The descriptions for ID fields that were previously available for select countries are updated to reflect the expanded country availability.

Field	Previous Description (EN)	New Description (EN)
cip_idv	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
cip_id_oldv	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
cip_id_old_2v	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
cip_id_old_3v	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
cip_id_old_4v	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
cip_id_old_5v	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations in France that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.	CIP ID (Club Inter Pharmaceutique). The identifier for healthcare organisations that sell drugs, specifically pharmacies.
finessv	Fichier National des Etablissements Sanitaires et Sociaux: 9-digit official identifier for HCOs in France	Fichier National des Etablissements Sanitaires et Sociaux: 9-digit official identifier for HCOs in France or Monaco.
finess_juridiquev	Fichier National des Etablissements Sanitaires et Sociaux: 9-digit official identifier for HCOs in France	Fichier National des Etablissements Sanitaires et Sociaux Juridique: 9-digit legal identifier for HCOs in France or Monaco.

Field	Previous Description (EN)	New Description (EN)
siretv	Système d'identification du répertoire des établissements: 14-digit official identifier for businesses in France	Système d'identification du répertoire des établissements: 14-digit official identifier for businesses in France or Monaco.
rppsv	Répertoire Partagé des Professionnels de Santé: 11-digit official identifier for HCPs in France	Répertoire Partagé des Professionnels de Santé: 11-digit official identifier for HCPs
psni_idv	Pharmaceutical Society of Northern Ireland. The identifier for pharmacists and pharmacies in Northern Ireland.	Pharmaceutical Society of Northern Ireland. The identifier for pharmacists and pharmacies in Northern Ireland and UK.
big_numv	Beroepen in de Individuele Gezondheidszorg. (BIG) The 11-digit official identifier for healthcare professionals in the Netherlands.	Beroepen in de Individuele Gezondheidszorg. (BIG) The 11- digit official identifier for healthcare professionals in the Netherlands or Belgium.
cgcob_idv	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Biólogos (Official College of Biologists ID). The identifier for Biologists in Spain.	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Biólogos (Official College of Biologists ID). The identifier for Biologists in Spain or Andorra.
cg_cod_idv	Consejo Dentistas (Official College of Dentists ID). The identifier for Dentists in Spain.	Consejo Dentistas (Official College of Dentists ID). The identifier for Dentists in Spain or Andorra.
cg_coe_idv	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Enfermería (Official College of Nurses ID). The identifier for Nurses in Spain.	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Enfermería (Official College of Nurses ID). The identifier for Nurses in Spain or Andorra.
cg_cof_idv	Colegio Oficial de farmaceuticos (Official College of Pharmacists ID). The identifier for Pharmacists in Spain.	Colegio Oficial de farmaceuticos (Official College of Pharmacists ID). The identifier for Pharmacists in Spain or Andorra.
cg_com_idv	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Médicos de España (Official College of Doctors ID). The identifier for Doctors in Spain.	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Médicos de España (Official College of Doctors ID). The identifier for Doctors in Spain or Andorra.
cg_cop_idv	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Psicólogos (Official College of Psychologists ID). The identifier for Psychologists in Spain.	Consejo General de Colegios Oficiales de Psicólogos (Official College of Psychologists ID). The identifier for Psychologists in Spain or Andorra.

Address fields

The following address field descriptions are updated .

Field Name	Previous Description (EN)	New Description (EN)
congressional_districtv	Congressional District	The congressional district to which the address belongs. This field is not managed by Veeva OpenData.
delivery_point_bar_codev	Delivery Point Bar Code	3-digit code. Consists of the 2-digit delivery point code and 1-digit check digit. Used to create the 12-digit POSTNET barcode: 5-digit ZIP, 4-digit ZIP+4 addon code, and this 3-digit code. Only generated for US addresses. Not managed by Veeva OpenData.
departmentv	Department Info	Organizational department information
dpv_confirmed_indicatorv	Delivery Point Confirmation	Indicates the deliverability of the address. Only provided for US Veeva OpenData addresses.
dpv_footnotesv	Delivery Point Validation Footnotes	Delivery Point Validation Footnotes. This field is only generated for US addresses. This field is not managed by Veeva OpenData.
footnotesv	Information regarding adjustments made to address	Information regarding adjustments made to address. This field is only generated for US addresses. This field is not managed by Veeva OpenData.
record_typev	Address Delivery Type	Address Delivery Type. This field is only generated for US addresses. This field is not managed by Veeva OpenData.
return_codev	Return Code	Return Code. This field is only generated for US addresses. This field is not managed by Veeva OpenData.

Name fields

The following name field descriptions are updated to clarify their meaning for international names.

Field Name	Label (EN)	Previous Description (EN)	New Description (EN)
alternate_first_namev	Alternate First Name	Alternate first name of the HCP.	Alternate first given name of the HCP.
alternate_last_namev	Alternate Last Name	Alternate last name of the HCP.	Alternate family name/last name/surname of the HCP.
alternate_middle_namev	Alternate Middle Name	Alternate middle name of the HCP.	Alternate middle given name(s) of the HCP.
first_namev	First Name	First name of the HCP.	First name given name of the HCP.
last_namev	Last Name	Last name of the HCP.	Family name/last name/surname of the HCP.
middle_namev	Middle Name	Middle name of the HCP.	Middle given name(s) of the HCP.

Field updates for all countries

Premise field

The following field has been added to the Address object for all countries (including countries that use the ZZ data model)

• premise extra v - Premise Extra.

This field holds information that could be present as part of the Premise field. It is used by Network's third-party address cleansing service to obtain a complete delivery address.

This is a new field so it will be managed by Veeva OpenData by default. It is enabled by default and cannot be disabled.

This field will not be added to standard profile layouts. You can add it to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

CRM hashtag field

The following field has been added to HCP and HCO objects for all countries (except countries that use the ZZ data model):

• crm_hashtags_v - Network Bridge use only. Field should only be enabled if Network cannot be used to manage CRM Account Identifier or if CRM hashtags need to be stored in a different CRM field. Field exports empty values for target subscription and reporting.

This field is not enabled by default. Administrators can enable the field in the Network Data Model. This is a new field so it will be managed by Veeva OpenData by default. The field is read-only. It cannot be changed through data change requests.

This field will not be added to standard profile layouts because it is used only for the Network Bridge.

Field updates for Asia Pacific

Indonesia

The following fields have been added or changed in the Indonesian data model.

The license number v field name is now Nomor Surat Tanda Registrasi (STR). Previously, the name was Lisensi.

The following fields have been added to the License object:

- initial board license date v Date license was first granted by the state licensing board.
- expiration_date__v Expiration date for the license.

The following field has been added to the HCP object:

• grad_school_v - Name of graduation school.

These License and HCP fields existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so they will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*. The fields will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. They must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Field updates for EMEA

Tax fields

The <code>hco_tax_id_v</code> field has been added to the HCO object for the following countries:

- Bosnia & Herzegovina (BA)
- Estonia (EE)
- Latvia (LV)
- Lithuania (LT)
- Montenegro (ME)
- Serbia (RS)

The hcp tax id v field has been added to the HCP object for the following countries:

- Bosnia & Herzegovina (BA)
- Montenegro (ME)
- North Macedonia (MK)
- Serbia (RS)

These tax fields existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so they will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*.

The fields will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. They must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Tax field label updates

The labels for the following tax fields are updated for Italy.

Object	Field	Previous Label for Italy	New Label for Italy
НСО	hco_tax_idv	Codice fiscal	Partita IVA
НСР	hcp_tax_idv	ID imposta	Codice Fiscale

Austria

The following field has been added to the HCP object:

• registration id v - Alphanumeric Registration ID.

This field existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so it will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*.

The field will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. It must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Bulgaria

The following field has been added to the HCP and HCO objects:

• international_name__v - Name of HCP/HCO in Latin based alphabet. Used for visualization and cross international regions business purposes for communications with users that do not have the ability to read non-Latin alphabet based language.

This field existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so it will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*.

The field will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. It must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Field updates for China

Fields have been added to the following regions or countries that are managed by the China Veeva OpenData team:

- Hong Kong (HK)
- Macao (MO)
- Taiwan (TW)

The following fields have been added to the HCP object:

- professional title v Professional title.
- academic_title__v Academic title.

These fields existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so they will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*.

The fields will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. They must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Field updates for Latin America

Argentina

The following field has been added to the HCO object:

• gln_id_v - Global Location Number. Unique ID for delivery address.

This field existed previously and might be used for customer-managed data in this country, so it will not be automatically managed by Veeva OpenData. For more information, see the section called *Adding new fields to your OpenData subscription*.

The field will be automatically added to standard profile layouts. It must be added to any custom profile layouts that you have created for these countries or regions.

Global data updates

The following sections describe reference data considerations and updates for applicable regions.

ALGERIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
ParentHCO	parent_hco_status_reasonv	RelationStatusReason	1_3	Active, Retired but rehired	Infirmier(e) de Pratique Avancée (IPA)

AUSTRALIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_13	Drugstore (OTC Only)	OTC-only Retail Stores

AUSTRIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_19	Pharmacy, Main branch	

CHINA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСР	academic_titlev	HCPAcademicTitle	IR	Intern Researcher	研究实习员
			JR	Junior Researcher	助理研究员

ESTONIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	8	Franchise	Frantsiis
			COMMN	Community Nurse Provider	Terviseõde
			DNH	Department Nurse Head	Osakonna vanemõde
			NPRES	Nurse Prescriber	Retsepti väljakirjutamise õigusega õde

FRANCE

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСР	credentials_1v to credentials_5v	HCPCredentials	AHU	University Hospital Assistant (AHU)	
			APN	Advanced Practice Nurse	Infirmier(e) de Pratique Avancée (IPA)
			ASCHU	Assistant Regional Specialist in CHU (ASCHU)	
			ASH	Specialized Hospital Assistant (ASH)	
			ASR	Regional Specialist Assistant (ASR)	
			CCA	Clinical Assistant (CCA-AHU)	
			INDP	Independent Prescriber	
			MCUPH	Lecturer of the Universities - Hospital Practitioner (MCU-PH)	
			NE	Nurse Educator	Infirmier(e) d'Education Thérapeutique (ETP)
			PHC	Contractual Hospital Practitioner (PHC)	
			PHU	University Hospital Practitioner (PHU)	
			PRATTACH	Hospital Practitioner	
			PUPH	Professor of Universities - Hospital Practitioner (PU-PH)	
			SUPPP	Supplementary Prescriber	

HONG KONG

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	9_37	Public Health Agency	公共衛生機構
			9_40	Public clinic	公營診所
НСР	academic_titlev	HCPAcademicTitle	ASP	Assistant Professor	助理教授
			IR	Intern Researcher	研究實習員
			JR	Junior Researcher	助理研究員
	professional_titlev	HCPProfessionalTitle	С	Cosmetologist	美容師
			CD	Chief Doctor	顧問醫生/主任醫生/主治醫師
			CLE	Clinical Laboratory Examiner	檢驗技師/檢驗師MT1
			CN	Chief Nurse	註冊護士/高級專科護士/護理師N4
			DIET	Dietician	營養師
			Μ	Masseuse	按摩師
			Ν	Nurse	登記護士/一級護士/護理師N1
			RD	Resident Doctor	駐院醫生/普通科醫生/住院醫師
			Т	Technician	技師/醫事放射師1
			ТР	Therapist	康復治療師
			VCD	Vice Chief Doctor	副顧問醫生/顧問醫生/研究醫師
			VCP	Vice Chief Pharmacist	高級藥劑師/藥師P3

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	ADNH	Assistant Director of Nursing Department	副護理長
			CEO	CEO	執行長
			СН	Chairman	董事長
			СМО	Chief medical officer	醫務長
			CNO	Chief Nurse	護理長
			C00	Chief operating officer	營運長
			СТ	Chief Therapist	總治療長
			DCEO	Deputy CEO	副執行長
			DCT	Deputy chief therapist	副治療長
			DM	Deputy Minister	副部長
			MI	Minister	部長
			SU	Supervision	督導

INDONESIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	32_11	Hospital, Other Specialized	

LATVIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	DNH	Department Nurse Head	Nodaļas galvenā māsa

LIECHTENSTEIN

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_19	Pharmacy, Main branch	

LITHUANIA

Obj	ject	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
HCF	P, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	DNH	Department Nurse Head	Skyriaus vyresnioji slaugytoja

MACAO

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	9_38	Private Medical Institution	私營醫療機構
			9_39	Private clinic	私家診所
НСР	academic_titlev	HCPAcademicTitle	ASP	Assistant Professor	助理教授
			IR	Intern Researcher	研究實習員
			JR	Junior Researcher	助理研究員
	professional_titlev	HCPProfessionalTitle	ATD	Attending Doctor	主治醫生/總住院醫師
			С	Cosmetologist	美容師
			CLE	Clinical Laboratory Examiner	檢驗技師/檢驗師MT1
			CN	Chief Nurse	註冊護士/高級專科護士/護理師N5
			DIET	Dietician	營養師
			Μ	Masseuse	按摩師
			Ν	Nurse	登記護士/一級護士/護理師N1
			NIC	Nurse-in-charge	高級護士/護理師N2
			RD	Resident Doctor	駐院醫生/普通科醫生/住院醫師
			Т	Technician	技師/醫事放射師1
			TP	Therapist	康復治療師
			VCD	Vice Chief Doctor	副顧問醫生/顧問醫生/研究醫師
			VCN	Vice Chief Nurse	專科護士/護理師N3

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	ADNH	Assistant Director of Nursing Department	副護理長
			CEO	CEO	執行長
			СН	Chairman	董事長
			СМО	Chief medical officer	醫務長
			CNO	Chief Nurse	護理長
			C00	Chief operating officer	營運長
			СТ	Chief Therapist	總治療長
			DCEO	Deputy CEO	副執行長
			DCT	Deputy chief therapist	副治療長
			DM	Deputy Minister	副部長
			MI	Minister	部長
			SU	Supervision	督導

MALAYSIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	32_12	Hospital, Other Specialized	

MONACO

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСР	credentials_1v to credentials_5v	HCPCredentials	AHU	University Hospital Assistant (AHU)	
			APN	Advanced Practice Nurse	Infirmier(e) d'Education Thérapeutique (ETP)
			ASCHU	Assistant Regional Specialist in CHU (ASCHU)	
			ASH	Specialized Hospital Assistant (ASH)	
			ASR	Regional Specialist Assistant (ASR)	
			CCA	Clinical Assistant (CCA-AHU)	
			INDP	Independent Prescriber	
			MCUPH	Lecturer of the Universities - Hospital Practitioner (MCU-PH)	
			NE	Nurse Educator	Infirmier(e) d'Education Thérapeutique (ETP)
			PHC	Contractual Hospital Practitioner (PHC)	
			PHU	University Hospital Practitioner (PHU)	
			PRATTACH	Hospital Practitioner	
			PUPH	Professor of Universities - Hospital Practitioner (PU-PH)	
			SUPPP	Supplementary Prescriber	

NEW ZEALAND

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСР	hcp_focus_area_1v to hcp_focus_area_36v	HCPFocusArea	ADHD	Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)	
	professional_titlev	HCPProfessionalTitle	MEDAS	Medical Assistant	Physician Associate

PHILIPPINES

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_13	Drugstore (OTC Only)	Botika/Parmasya
			32_13	Hospital, Other Specialized	

SWITZERLAND

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_19	Pharmacy, Main branch	

TAIWAN

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСР	academic_titlev	HCPAcademicTitle	ASP	Assistant Professor	助理教授
			IR	Intern Researcher	研究實習員
			JR	Junior Researcher	助理研究員
	professional_titlev	HCPProfessionalTitle	ATD	Attending Doctor	主治醫生/總住院醫師
			С	Cosmetologist	美容師
			CCLE	Chief Clinical Laboratory Examiner	檢驗師 MT4
			CD	Chief Doctor	顧問醫生/主任醫生/主治醫師
			CLE	Clinical Laboratory Examiner	檢驗技師/檢驗師MT1
			CLEIC	Chief Laboratory Examiner-in- charge	檢驗師MT2
			CN	Chief Nurse	註冊護士/高級專科護士/護理師N6
			СР	Chief Pharmacist	總藥劑師/藥師P4
			СТ	Chief Technician	醫事放射師4
			DIET	Dietician	營養師
			Μ	Masseuse	按摩師
			NIC	Nurse-in-charge	高級護士/護理師N2
			Р	Pharmacist	藥劑師/藥師P1
			PIC	Pharmacist-in-charge	藥師P2

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
			TIC	Technician-in-charge	醫事放射師2
			ТР	Therapist	康復治療師
			VCCLE	Vice Chief Clinical Laboratory Examiner	檢驗師MT3
			VCD	Vice Chief Doctor	副顧問醫生/顧問醫生/研究醫師
			VCN	Vice Chief Nurse	專科護士/護理師N3
			VCP	Vice Chief Pharmacist	高級藥劑師/藥師P3
			VCT	Vice Chief Technician	醫事放射師3
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	ADNH	Assistant Director of Nursing Department	副護理長
			CEO	CEO	執行長
			СН	Chairman	董事長
			СМО	Chief medical officer	醫務長
			CNO	Chief Nurse	護理長
			C00	Chief operating officer	營運長
			CT	Chief Therapist	總治療長
			DCEO	Deputy CEO	副執行長
			DCT	Deputy chief therapist	副治療長
			DM	Deputy Minister	副部長
			MI	Minister	部長
			SU	Supervision	督導

THAILAND

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_13	Drugstore (OTC Only)	ร้านขายยาจำหน่ายหน้าเคาเตอร์
			32_14	Hospital, Other Specialized	

VIETNAM

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)	Translation
НСО	business_typev	HCOBusinessType	PB	Public	Công lập
			PR	Private	Tư nhân
	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_13	Drugstore (OTC Only)	Quầy thuốc
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	DSS	Digestive System Surgery	Ngoại tiêu hoá

Global data inactivations

The following sections list reference codes that have been inactivated by Veeva OpenData for the countries listed. Veeva OpenData does not use these codes in their data; you may choose to update reference code mappings accordingly unless they are required by your own data.

ALBANIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

BAHRAIN

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

BULGARIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

CROATIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

DENMARK

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
HCP, HCO	specialty_1v to specialty_10v	Specialty	9	Children Care
			А	Allergy
			AC	Acute Care
			ADL	Adolescent Medicine (Pediatrics)
			ADU	Adult Health
			AHF	Advanced Heart Failure
			ALI	Clinical Lab Immunology (Allergy & Imm)
			AMF	Adolescent Medicine (Family Medicine)
			APM	Pain Medicine (Anesthesiology)
			ATP	Anatomic Pathology
			BIP	Brain Injury Medicine (Phys Med & Rehab)
			BMG	Biochemical & Medical Genetics
			CAP	Child Abuse Pediatrics
			CBG	Clinical Biochemical Genetics
			CCA	Critical Care Medicine (Anesthesiology)
			CCN	Critical Care Neurosurgery
			CDT	Transplant Cardiology
			CG	Clinical Genetics
			CHD	Adult Congenital Heart Disease (IM)

Object Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
		CIM	Clinical Informatics (Preventive Med)
		CLP	Clinical Pathology
		CMG	Clinical Molecular Genetics
		CN	Clinical Neurophysiology
		CPP	Pediatrics/Psychiatry
		CTS	Surgery/Cardiothoracic
		DBP	Developmental-Behavioral Pediatrics
		DDL	Clinical & Lab Dermatological Immunology
		EP	Epidemiology
		ETX	Medical Toxicology (Emergency Medicine)
		FM	Family Medicine (Formerly FP)
		FMP	Family Medicine - Preventive Medicine
		FPG	Geriatric Medicine (Family Practice)
		FPP	Family Medicine/Psychiatry
		FPS	Facial Plastic Surgery
		GPM	General Preventive Medicine
		GYN	Gynecology
		HBS	Hepatobiliary Surgery
		HPA	Hospice & Palliative Med (Anesth)
		НРО	Hospice & Palliative Medicine (ObGyn)
		HPR	Hospice & Palliative Med (PhysMed&Rehab)
		HSO	Hand Surgery (Orthopedic)

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			HSS	Hand Surgery (Surgery)
			HYG	Hygiene & Environmental Medicine
			IC	Interventional Cardiology
			ILI	Clinical and Laboratory Immunology (IM)
			IMG	Geriatric Medicine (Internal Medicine)
			LPD	Lipidology
			MBG	Medical Biochemical Genetics
			МСВ	Microbiology (Research)
			MDG	Internal Medicine/Medical Genetics
			MDP	Medical Physics (Radiology)
			MEM	Internal Med-Emergency Med
			MEP	Medical Physics
			MGP	Molecular Genetic Pathology (Pathology)
			MHC	Mental Health Counselor
			MPM	Internal Medicine/Rehabilitation
			NET	Transplant Nephrology
			NMN	Neuromuscular Medicine
			NMO	Neuromusculoskeletal Medicine
			NON	Neurologic Oncology
			NP	Neuropathology
			NPR	Neurology/Physical Medicine & Rehab
			NUP	Neuropsychiatry

Object Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
		OAR	Adult Reconstructive Orthopedics
		OFA	Foot & Ankle Orthopedics
		OMF	Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery (Medicine)
		OMM	Osteopathic Manipulative Medicine
		OPR	Ophthalmic Plastic & Recon Surgery
		OSM	Sports Medicine (Orthopedic Surgery)
		OSS	Orthopedic Surgery of the Spine
		OTR	Orthopedic Trauma
		PCC	Pulmonary Critical Care Medicine
		PCP	Cytopathology
		PHT	Physical Therapy
		PHY	Physiatry
		PLI	Clinical & Laboratory Immunology (Ped)
		PMN	Pain Medicine (Neurology)
		PMR	Pain Management (Physical Med & Rehab)
		POG	Foot & Ankle Surgery
		PPM	Pediatrics/Physical Med and Rehab
		PRM	Rehabilitation Medicine Pediatric
		PRS	Sports Medicine (Physical Med & Rehab)
		PSC	Clinical Psychology
		PSN	Neuropsychology
		PSR	Rehabilitation Psychology

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			PSU	Addiction Psychology & Counseling
			PYG	Geriatric Psychiatry
			PYN	Psychiatry/Neurology
			RIP	Pathology/Radioisotopic
			SCI	Spinal Cord Injury Medicine
			SMN	Sleep Medicine (Psychiatry & Neurology)
			SMO	Sleep Medicine (Otolaryngology)
			TSI	Thoracic Surgery-Integrated
			UGY	Urogynecology
			VEA	Veterinary Medicine, Agricultural
			VEZ	Veterinary Medicine, Research
			VN	Vascular Neurology

Egypt

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

ESTONIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

GHANA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

ICELAND

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

INDIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11:12	Pharmacy, Compounding Pharmacy
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			36_4	Health Care System Administration, Other Administration Agencies
			4:15	Organization, Other
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:9	Prison

INDONESIA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			15:37	Medical School, Government
			15:39	Medical School, Corporate Office
			1_22	Hospital, General
			1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:10	Pharmacy, Specialty Pharmacy
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:6	Pharmacy, Pharmacy Benefit Mgmt Org
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:8	Pharmacy, HIV/AIDS Clinic
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			13:10	Healthcare Manufacturer, Animal Health
			13:2	Healthcare Manufacturer, Non Healthcare
			13:3	Healthcare Manufacturer, Pharmaceutical/Biotech
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:1	Medical School, General
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:98	Prison, Other
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:98	Medical Board, Other
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			3_6	Blood Transfusion Centers
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			33_1	Ancillary Services, Emergency Rescue and Patient Transfer
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			34_3	Rest of Economy, Other Industries
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_17	Town hall
			36_2	Health Care System Administration, Social Health Insurance Agencies
			36_3	Health Care System Administration, Private Health Insurance Agencies
			36_4	Health Care System Administration, Other Administration Agencies
			4_2	Non-HCO, Chain Pharmacy Stores
			4_3	Non-HCO, Chain Pharmacy Headquarters
			4_39	Group Practice Satellite
			4_4	Distributors, General

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4_53	Organization, University Clinic
			4_64	Wholesaler
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_8	Radiology & Imaging Center
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:15	Organization, Other
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:18	Organization, Dentistry Group
			4:19	Organization, Veterinary Group
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:20	Organization, Veterinary Hospital
			4:21	Organization, Animal Welfare/Control
			4:22	Organization, Zoo/Wildlife Refuge
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:34	Organization, Hemophilia Center
			4:35	Organization, CMS Teaching Hospital
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:9	Prison
			4:98	Organization, Other Org
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:3	Managed Care, Integrated Healthcare Network
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office

ISRAEL

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

JORDAN

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

Kenya

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

KUWAIT

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

LATVIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

LEBANON

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

LIECHTENSTEIN

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	4:6	Organization, Hospital

LITHUANIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

MALTA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

MAURITIUS

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

Montenegro

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

Morocco

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

NORTH MACEDONIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

OMAN

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

QATAR

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

Romania

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SAUDI ARABIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SENEGAL

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SERBIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SLOVENIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SOUTH AFRICA

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

SWITZERLAND

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	4:6	Organization, Hospital

TUNISIA

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

TURKEY

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			4:6	Organization, Hospital

VIETNAM

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	1_7	Mental Health Hospital
			11:10	Pharmacy, Specialty Pharmacy
			11:11	Pharmacy, Other Managed Care
			11:12	Pharmacy, Compounding Pharmacy
			11:3	Pharmacy, Home Health
			11:5	Pharmacy, Long Term Care Pharmacy Provider
			11:6	Pharmacy, Pharmacy Benefit Mgmt Org
			11:7	Pharmacy, Oncology Specialty Pharmacy
			11:8	Pharmacy, HIV/AIDS Clinic
			11:9	Pharmacy, Kaiser
			11:97	Pharmacy, Other Specialty Clinic
			11:98	Pharmacy, Other

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			13:10	Healthcare Manufacturer, Animal Health
			13:2	Healthcare Manufacturer, Non Healthcare
			13:3	Healthcare Manufacturer, Pharmaceutical/Biotech
			13:4	Healthcare Manufacturer, Vaccine Manufacturer
			13:6	Healthcare Manufacturer, Ophthalmic
			13:7	Healthcare Manufacturer, Medical-Surgical
			13:8	Healthcare Manufacturer, Device
			13:9	Healthcare Manufacturer, Durable Medical Equipment
			13:98	Healthcare Manufacturer, Other
			13:99	Healthcare Manufacturer, Corporate Office
			14:1	Medical School, General
			14:10	Medical School, Pharmacy
			14:11	Medical School, Respiratory Therapy
			14:12	Medical School, Physical Therapy
			14:13	Medical School, Occupational Therapy
			14:14	Medical School, Psychology
			14:15	Medical School, Social Work
			14:16	Medical School, Paramedic/EMT
			14:18	Medical School, Chiropractic
			14:2	Medical School, Allopathic
			14:20	Medical School, Naturopathic
			14:21	Medical School, Homeopathic

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			14:22	Medical School, Oriental Medicine
			14:3	Medical School, Osteopathic
			14:4	Medical School, Podiatric
			14:5	Medical School, Dental
			14:6	Medical School, Nursing
			14:7	Medical School, PA
			14:8	Medical School, Optometric
			14:9	Medical School, Veterinary
			14:97	Medical School, Government
			14:98	Medical School, Other
			14:99	Medical School, Corporate Office
			15:1	Residency Program, Residency
			15:98	Residency Program, Other
			15:99	Residency Program, Corporate Office
			19:1	Prison, Federal
			19:2	Prison, State
			19:3	Prison, County
			19:4	Prison, City & Local
			19:98	Prison, Other
			19:99	Prison, Corporate Office
			2:1	Healthcare Provider, General
			28:98	Medical Board, Other

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			28:99	Medical Board, Corporate Office
			29:2	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Hospital-based Dialysis/Infusion
			29:98	Dialysis & Infusion Centers, Other
			3_6	Blood Transfusion Centers
			31_5	Professional Public Health Agencies, General Providers of Preventive Care
			32_23	Hospital, Mental Health
			33_1	Ancillary Services, Emergency Rescue and Patient Transfer
			34_1	Rest of Economy, Households providing home health care
			34_2	Rest of Economy, All other industries as secondary providers
			34_3	Rest of Economy, Other Industries
			35_1	Rest of World, General
			36_1	Health Care System Administration, Government Health Administration
			36_10	NHS Trust
			36_11	Non-NHS Organization
			36_17	Town hall
			36_2	Health Care System Administration, Social Health Insurance Agencies
			36_3	Health Care System Administration, Private Health Insurance Agencies
			36_4	Health Care System Administration, Other Administration Agencies
			4_2	Non-HCO, Chain Pharmacy Stores
			4_3	Non-HCO, Chain Pharmacy Headquarters
			4_39	Group Practice Satellite

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4_4	Distributors, General
			4_53	Organization, University Clinic
			4_54	Organization, Military Clinic
			4_56	Hospital, Teaching and University
			4_71	Hospice
			4_72	Strategic Clinical Network
			4_8	Radiology & Imaging Center
			4_95	Organization, Other Residential Long-Term Care Facilities
			4_96	Mental Health and Substance Abuse Facilities
			4_97	Organization, Home Health Care Services
			4_98	Organization, Family Planning Centers
			4:11	Organization, Admin Only
			4:14	Organization, HMO/Insurance
			4:16	Organization, Hospital Based NH/LTC
			4:17	Organization, Independent Medical Billing Services
			4:19	Organization, Veterinary Group
			4:2	Organization, Group at Hospital
			4:20	Organization, Veterinary Hospital
			4:21	Organization, Animal Welfare/Control
			4:22	Organization, Zoo/Wildlife Refuge
			4:23	Optical Center
			4:24	Physiotherapy Center

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			4:25	Organization, Chiropractic Group
			4:26	Organization, Alternative Medicine Group
			4:27	Organization, Podiatry Group
			4:28	Organization, Occupational Therapy Group
			4:29	Organization, Respiratory Therapy Group
			4:3	Organization, Corporate (no public access)
			4:30	Psychotherapy / Counselling Center
			4:31	Organization, Residential Facility
			4:32	Organization, Community MH Center
			4:33	Organization, Multiple Sclerosis Center
			4:34	Organization, Hemophilia Center
			4:35	Organization, CMS Teaching Hospital
			4:36	Organization, Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
			4:41	Organization, Hospice
			4:64	Organization, Cystic Fibrosis Center
			4:65	Purchaser
			4:66	Organization, Accountable Care Organizations (ACOs)
			4:9	Prison
			7:1	Home Health Care Agency
			7:98	Home Health Care Agencies, Other
			7:99	Home Health Care Agencies, Corporate Office
			9:1	Managed Care, General Managed Care

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Description (EN)
			9:10	Managed Care, Exclusive Provider Org
			9:11	Managed Care, Point of Service
			9:12	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Organization
			9:13	Managed Care, Physician Practice Management
			9:14	Managed Care, Integrated Health Care Network
			9:15	Managed Care, Employer Groups
			9:16	Managed Care, Insurance Carriers
			9:17	Managed Care, HMO
			9:18	Managed Care, Assistance Programs
			9:19	Managed Care, Workers Comp
			9:2	Managed Care, Independent Physicians Assoc
			9:20	Managed Care, Medicare Advantage
			9:21	Managed Care, Medicare Prescription Drug Plan
			9:3	Managed Care, Integrated Healthcare Network
			9:5	Managed Care, Physician Hospital Org
			9:6	Managed Care, PPO
			9:7	Managed Care, Medicare Risk HMO
			9:8	Managed Care, Medicare Risk PPO
			9:9	Managed Care, Management Service Org
			9:98	Managed Care, Other Managed Care
			9:99	Managed Care, Corporate Office

Translation updates

The following sections describe translation updates for applicable regions.

CHINESE - TRADITIONAL

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCO, HCP, ParentHCO	department_classv, primary_department_classv	DepartmentClass	250	乳房手術	甲乳腺外科
			251	乳房手術	甲乳血管外科
НСР	hcp_typev	НСРТуре	DT	牙醫師(生)	牙醫師
			Ν	護理師 (士)	護理師
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	WNH		護理組長

ENGLISH - AMERICAN

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	15	CMS Hospital Claims	CMS Facility Claims

KOREAN

The following changes have been applied:

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСО	hco_typev	НСОТуре	11_13		드러그스토어

ROMANIAN

Object	Field	Reference Type	Code	Previous Translation	New Translation
НСР	professional_titlev	HCPProfessionalTitle	AN	Surori medicale	Infirmier
HCP, ParentHCO	primary_relation_typev, relationship_typev	RelationType	AN		Infirmier